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August 13, 2020

TO: Mayor Jerry L. Demings
-AND-
Board of County Commiss®==~-~
FROM: Jon V. Weiss, P.E., Direct
Planning, Environmental, elopment

Services Department

CONTACT PERSON: David D. Jones, P.E., CEP, Manager
Environmental Protection Division
(407) 836-1405

SUBJECT: September 1, 2020 — Consent Item
Olton Property University Station
Conservation Area Impact Permit #CAI-20-06-040
(Related to Case Nos. FLUMA-2020-1-S-5-1 and RZ-20-04-
063)

The Olton Property University Station project site is located at 3370 Rouse Road, just
south of the intersection of University Boulevard and Rouse Road in north-central
Orange County, District 5. The parcel identification number for the site is 09-22-31-
0000-00-004. The applicant is requesting a Conservation Area Impact (CAl) permit to
impact 0.08 acre of the required upland buffer.

The project site includes 3.14 acres of uplands, 1.07 acres of required upland buffer,
and 1.40 acres of the Little Econlockhatchee River (Class | surface water). The
Environmental Protection Division (EPD) issued a Conservation Area Determination
(#CAD-19-11-171) for the project site on May 15, 2020.

The project site is located within the Econlockhatchee River Basin. Pursuant to Orange
County Code, Chapter 15, Article, XI, Sec. 15-442(f) (Basin-wide regulations), upland
buffers averaging fifty (50) feet in width with a minimum of twenty-five (25) feet in width
are required for Class | and Il conservation areas as such areas are defined in section
15-364.

The upland vegetative community consists of a hardwood-conifer mix with a canopy of
mainly live oak, loblolly pine, and laurel oak with ground cover consisting mainly of saw
palmetto with scattered caesarweed, grape and air potato vine, sword fern, American
beautyberry, and other species. The upland community is highly disturbed with a
significant homeless population occupying the property. The Class | surface water (Little
Econlockhatchee River) is a mixed-forested, closed-canopy wetland community with a
central flowing surface water. The vegetative community consists of river banks and
interior islands with mainly bald cypress, red maple, water oak, and cabbage palm and
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ground cover of immature sweet gum, pennywort, canna, wild taro, lizard’s tail, poison
ivy, and coral ardisia. Some portions of the wetland have also been disturbed by the
homeless camps occupying the property.

Discussion

The applicant is requesting authorization to impact 0.08 acre of the required 50-foot
average upland buffer associated with the Little Econlockatchee River in order to
construct portions of the proposed stormwater pond and compensating storage areas
for the commercial development. The remaining 0.99 acres of required upland buffer will
remain undisturbed. As mitigation for the 0.08 acre of impacts to the required upland
buffer, the applicant proposes to purchase of 0.04 Uniform Mitigation Assessment
Method wetland credits from the TM-Econ Mitigation Bank, Phases 1-3.

In accordance with Chapter 15, Article XI, Section 15-442(a), the applicant conducted a
survey of the property for the presence of imperiled species. No imperiled species were
identified within the project area. In addition, since the bald eagle is still protected under
the Bald and Golden Eagle Protection Act, the Migratory Bird Treaty Act, and Florida
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’'s Bald Eagle rule under Administrative
Code 68A-16.002, the applicant conducted a review for any recorded Bald Eagle nests
on or within the vicinity of the subject property. The evaluation indicated that no active
eagle nests were observed within one mile of the subject property. The subject property
is also located within an active Wood Stork Nesting Colony Core Foraging Area, but no
impacts have been proposed to significant foraging habitat of the wood stork. Staff
confirmed these findings during site visits conducted during the application review
process. The project is not expected to result in adverse effects to imperiled species.

In accordance with Chapter 15, Article Xl, Section 15-442(b), the landscaping design
will include the use of native plant species and minimize removal of understory
vegetation to the greatest extent practical so that wildlife habitat will be preserved and
maintained and the landscaped areas will blend into nearby natural areas.

The stormwater management system consists of a wet detention treatment system and
is not expected to result in adverse impacts to the hydrologic regime of the conservation
area.

The applicants’ agent states that the project has been designed to avoid and minimize
impacts to wetlands, and that the proposed impacts are necessary due to the following:

e The building footprint and necessary amenities were reduced as much as
pc sib  to minimize impacts. The existing building footprint is tt  minimum
required to make the project financially feasible.

e The site has been designed with the minimum number of parking spaces as
required by Orange County, and no excess parking is provided. The project’s
overall design has incorporated compact parking spaces and a retaining wall to
further reduce impacts to the required 50-foot average upland buffer.
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There have been no current enforcement actions taken by EPD on the subject property,
and there is no history of a violations on this property.

EPD staff has evaluated the CAl Permit application and required documentation and
has made a finding that the request is consistent with Orange County Code, Chapter
15, Article X, Wetland Conservation Areas Ordinance and Article XI, Econlockhatchee
River Protection Ordinance and recommends approval.

This item will be considered concurrently with case numbers FLUMA-2020-1-S-5-1 and
RZ-20-04-063, which were continued from the August 11, 2020 meeting of the Board.

ACTION REQUESTED: Acceptance of the findings and recommendation of
Environmental Protection Division staff and approval
of Conservation Area Impact Permit CAI-20-06-040
for the Olton Property University Station project site.
District 5
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